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Preface

This book was written with the aim of elaborating the Quran and to find out whether religion in 2017 is still applicable in today's busy Western society. The result is a detailed novel in which sociology, law and its elaboration and importance for society, religion, culture and policy are discussed. The story is about a student whom is tried to recruit him for a terrorist group during his graduation period, during his college days. During his campaign he meets embassy employees, policy makers, journalists and members of parliament. He also meets many normal laymen and with the wisdom that has been given to him, he learns to see situations differently. He learned to recognize the importance of religion and saw how religion and culture are related.

He also met drug addicts and learned to recognize pimps. He played the game along until it was clear to him how people in the Netherlands are treated and who is at the wheel of such practices. He learned to recognize democratic values and how those values are applied to people in Western Europe. He learned to recognize hypocrites and to understand the characteristics of Westerners. He learned from Christian, Jewish and pagan Dutch how people should not be treated, but the question that stays with him mostly is why the next generation in the Netherlands do not make it clear to their white elderly that fraud and pedophilia are not desirable and that they would prefer to get it out of their culture. If all of the Dutch frustrated women and men who fuck their sons and daughters could learn how to look at themselves before pointing their democratic finger at others, we'd be well on our way.

The book itself is full of footnotes to confirm the dualistic stories in this book. While reading, it is recommended that you include the footnotes at the bottom of the page, which are listed in chronological order in Chapter 12. It was Moses who worked on the outcome of the story and Mohamad who then arranged the order of the verses.





The student and his degree.

He was studying law and was almost graduated. The migration flows of the refugees at the outer borders of Europe was his subject for his thesis. The year is 2015 and migration in Europe was severe. Hundreds of thousands were at the borders of Europe in member states as Greece and Italy ready to make the transit towards North- and Western Europe.

Besides studying law he also had the ambition to start his own institution. An integration institution in the form of a school to integrate the newly arrived refugees from mainly Syria in the Dutch society. Teaching the refugees the language and put them effectively at work was his mission. The amount of money that circulate in that scene was ridiculous. The subject of his thesis and the minors and majors he had picked in the beginning of the year when college started were perfectly connected with his striving to start a business. Looking afterwards, on his striving to start an institution, the circumstances were too good to be true. The process of setting up an institution was in a stage where the student was actively looking for a patent. He arrived in Rijswijk in the Netherlands where he was surprised of the existence of the European Patent Centre. That meant that his institution was not only applicable in the Netherlands but also in member states like Germany, France and Belgium.

Around the same period of time he also started with his internship. That was something he was looking out for because he was finally able to start to network with other ambitious students. His internship was at a business counter in Southside-Rotterdam and it was an setting where his university and the municipality were connected with each other and was run by students, which supported the entrepreneurs in two streets with judicial affairs.

Together with three other students from his university he continued his internship and the students were supported with their assignments by a tutor and the manager of the two streets. They were found together regularly during the many business meetings they had with some entrepreneurs and the director of a supermarket based in the same street. What the students discussed with the entrepreneurs will not be mentioned because it is irrelevant. The goal was to write a plan of approach to release 450 thousand euro’s each year for the upcoming three years. The money was meant for the economical and urban development of the two streets in south-side-Rotterdam. The money was reserved by the municipality and was supposed to increase the living and economical standards of the city region.

During the writing of the plan of approach something was odd. His fellow students were very suspicious when it came to his work activities. He was constantly being approached due to his attitude and the relationship with his fellow interns was not very good, to say the least. Besides that the student was being observed by the avenue manager and was even replaced to an office of an associate. He was not screened like the other interns he was told during the many performance conversations.

There was no shortage of the many performance conversations with the tutor of his university and the district manager. The student was being told that he was the light, the noor. What his tutor meant with it was unknown for the student at that time but they already made up plans to sabotage him. He did not spent much time thinking about the mentioning of his tutor but it did gave him goose bumps. He did not know why he had so many conversations due to complains about his attitude by his tutor. Eventually, in consultation with the district manager, he was replaced to an office of the city marines of the municipality in the neighborhood Riederbuurt because the relationship with his fellow interns was gradually becoming bad.

The subsidized 1.5 million did eventually get released by a member of the council of the municipality. It was there that his thoughts was being confirmed and that is that the subsidized money was being directed to the pockets of the entrepreneurs and to the avenue-manager. The avenue-manager was given 75 thousand euro’s and another entrepreneur received a sum of money due to fraudulent business practices. The student was not happy how business was done and went to the tutors from his university. He was studying law and was surprised about the fact that his university thought him the national- and international rules and laws and was doing the exact opposite in practice. The student wrote in an email about the fraudulent ways of doing business by the business counter under the supervision of a tutor and the municipality during his internship. The weekly slander and defamation had not been told by the student1. His university is the type of university which spends great effort  into the image of its modern buildings but less effort in quantity. The university committed fraud with degrees in 2008 when it reached the news. Nevertheless, the response of the university about the fraudulent way of doing business surprised him. He was being told to calm down. Something that was not to be understood after all the crap that played out in that business counter under supervision of the university and the municipality of Rotterdam.

The two streets in south-side-Rotterdam is a shopping street and it is given not much attention. There is this example where a man slightly panicked ran inside the business counter and reproached the municipality of mismanagement and neglecting of his neighborhood. During Christmas-time there were Christmas trees with no lights hanging in them and were standing pathetically against defect streetlights. He was wondering why the district was slowly being abolished. At night it had a whole different economy and the vibes in the street was due to a lack of light not pleasant to say the least. This in contrast with the northern parts of Rotterdam in the area of the Town Hall. Those parts were areas in Rotterdam which is being invested in and the newly presented plans on images on how it will look in the future were quite impressive2.

After months of conversation with his overseeing tutor his internship at the business counter came to an end. The student was being told to look out for a new place where he could resume his time as an intern before he could graduate. He contacted the district manager and he told the student that he could resume his internship at the city marines in the  neighborhood Riederbuurt. His fellow interns were disgusted by his replacement. It seemed for them that their thoughts were finally affirmed by the managers about the students attitude and his deliverance of services and products. In reality the student did not want to work with fraudulent entrepreneurs and their associates and that’s why he and his fellow interns did not get along3.

When the avenue-manager heard the news of the students departure from the business counter and continuation of his internship at the city marines he was different in behavior. He came into the office of the city marines and told the appointment manager that the student was a hacker. This was during a time in the United States when the e-mails of Hillary Clinton was the main subject and the revelations from media-outlets who claimed that Russia was actively involved in the presidential elections in Europe and the United States. The appointed manager of the city marines did not mentioned something of the conversation he had with the Moroccan avenue-manager about the student and his allegations of the student being a hacker. The Moroccan avenue-manager was looking back at his allegations partly right because the student did had sent some of the evidence about the fraudulent ways of doing business to his e-mail account. In the last two months of his internship at the city marines the student was being told that he had an appointment with one of the managers of the faculty4.

It was the same avenue-manager who told the student that he would not be assigned for a graduation-thesis in a  common European investigation program called ‘Freedom, Security and Justice’. When he did get assigned he humbled himself. In the last two months of his internship the appointed manager of the city marines told the student that he had an appointment with the domain-manager from the University. He had heard about the student and his denial to cooperate with fraud. During those conversations he was being told that there were concerns about the students mental health. His university was concerned and went to extreme heights to reflect their worries about the student mental health on the poor guy. Repeatedly were the arguments and concerns about his mental health, and during every conversation he was being told the same. These were dangerous utterances in a dangerous time. There was war going on in Syria and Europe, the United States and Turkey have felt the attacks and losses of men, children and woman. There were attacks around the whole world committed by Muslims who were first confused and later became radicalized. Nobody believed the news-outlets. This became painfully clear when the students were told to write an assignment about ISIS. There were mixed reactions coming from the students but the main conclusions was that it was about radical westerns who made the Muslims look bad5.

The conversations with the domain-manager of the faculty law, business and finance continued over a period of several months. By framing the student as confused no one would believe him about the mismanagement and fraudulent ways of doing business by the university and the municipality of Rotterdam. They used slander to get rid of him and take his business-plan for his own institution. Not only did his  university knew about his plans by reading his paperwork of the students assignments but he had also told the appointed manager of the city marines about his plans. It escalated as such that the director and the chairman of the executive board also got involved6.

There was a lot of e-mail correspondence and by replying to the e-mails of the domain-manager he asked them why he was framing him as confused? Did they had used reason and were they not aware that there was attacks committed by confused muslims who became radicalized? Recently, in Belgium. On the airport Zaventem. Why were they not using reason?

The student was obliged to go on an excursion to Hungary for the European program he was assigned to. A five day excursion with four other universities from around Europe in the city of Pecs, Hungary was on the schedule in the year 2016. Before departure there were several meeting at the university in Rotterdam where they discussed each other and the progress of their thesis. During one of those meetings they also discussed their arrival in Hungary and departure from Hungary. Everyone would take the same flight. Unfortunately the student was informed with another return flight from Hungary to the Netherlands. The journey back to the Netherlands would be undertaken alone by the student. His fellow-student took off and he spent alone in Budapest looking for an hostel to sleep in7.

The student is definitely Muslim and a firm believer. A bit odd at his time and looser then the stereotype muslim with a  beard and a turban. He prayed regularly while being laconic about it8.

The months wherein the conversation were being held with the domain-manager of the faculty of law, finance and business, the student reached out towards a couple entrepreneurs in the same street as the previous business counter. He met a man with his own laundry services. He was not willing to talk with the student, too afraid to talk. Afraid to lose his permit of the laundry services, or whatever his decision not to speak was. The student also met a woman who had her office a couple of houses further and whom profession is consultancy. The student had to make an appointment before he could speak with her. She told the student that the mismanagement was not of yesterday but was playing out for these past years and the conversation continued. She told the student that the mismanagement in the shopping street was something from the past years. It started with the rebuilding of the rails of the trams. Complete rail systems were being replaced which obligated the municipality to break up the roads. The entrepreneurs were troubled by these unnecessary renovations and were losing customers. In the end it turned out to be a disaster. The costs were millions of euro’s.

The student also met a Hindu from Suriname who was studying business and finance at the Erasmus University in Rotterdam. He told the student that he had his own foundation which investigates fraud9. That was good news for the student. His new companion had his office in the district  of Blaak. The business and finance student also mentioned something about a social-democrat member of the city council.

The student went together with his companion to another entrepreneur whom the student had met when he came to present a quotation in the first period of his internship at the business counter.

The entrepreneur was invited to present a quotation for the billboards under the awnings and had send afterwards a letter of complaint directed to the district manager. He stated that there was unfair competition by the board of directors and fraudulent ways of doing business when it came to the public tender. He stated that a member of the board of directors had taken part as a private party in the public tender while leaving as a member of the board of directors one day before the tender was being assigned to a party. By chance, before the tender got assigned. By chance that it was the former member of the directors who got offered to do the job, as it was being stated by the entrepreneur. The district-manager answered that he could do nothing more for the entrepreneur. There was another entrepreneur who was also a victim of the fraudulent ways of doing business but the student and his companion did not visit him. The entrepreneur who wrote a letter of complaint told the student and his companion that it may be better to not investigate and let it be. What the entrepreneur did not know was that his university and the avenue- manager were trying to copy the students business plan on his institution. As compensation he gave them an investigation into the governing crisis in south-side-Rotterdam and the Town Hall. He was even flyering in the neighborhood and was telling the peoples and the other business-owners  that a clique of entrepreneurs were in shady businesses which involved 1.5 million. On one of his roadtrips he met a group of youngsters who were cursing at him. Later he would find out that they had made a picture and sent it to the executive of the area. The student had received a letter with an invitation to meet and speak with the executive and his note taker. There is this presumption that the student did not know in which circumstances he was founding himself in. Instead of being scared of them he asked them if they could offer him a job. The student thought he had made himself look respectful in front of the governing institutions in south-side-Rotterdam and the Town Hall. Little did the student know how far these directors go for a clique of business owners and a foot soldier who made 75 thousand euros in a fraudulent and shady construction.

The contact between the two students faded away after a couple of meetings. He was being mysterious and the suspicion arose that the student from the Erasmus University was a mule for the black social-democrat from the local council. The student could only guess his intention but he was probably someone who had to express some information meant for the student. They never spoke each other again but the student had in return been given some information about the black social-democrat from the local council10.

In the meanwhile, the student was scheduling to achieve some final exams and he was busy writing his thesis with the subject ‘Free Movement’. What was characteristic about that time in 2015 is that there were attacks committed by ISIS in Turkey, and mainland Europe, and Britannia, and the United  States and in the southern-Sahel region. Nobody knew why these attacks were committed and what the purpose of the attacks were. In France on the Boulevard where 83 men, woman and children died or in Germany on a Christmas-market. It is very annoying to sum the attacks up committed by ISIS because it seems that there is terrorism fatigue. The attacks were frequent and the storyline mostly parallel with other attacks. The psyche of student became an issue too later hand. He had dozens of conversations with multiple managers and directors in Rotterdam and The Hague. In these days the student became intense in speech and attitude. He presented the director the serious suspicions that he in fact was a mule for a terrorist organization11. What did happen with some of the students who seemed to have changed overnight and others being reported for psychiatric clinics?

They decided to suspend him for three months. When the student asked them with what reason they had done that, the director and his note taker presented him a paper with sketchy reproaches. The student walked away from the conversation and broke the glass of the exit with his heel. The police would come, but the student was not planning to wait for them. The police would eventually themselves contact the student.

This was the second time in a couple of months that the student got in negative contact with the police. The first time a Chinese looking man ran up to him and was shouting why the student was cursing at him. This was a couple of hundred meters away from his apartment. The psyche of student  wanted to tell the Chinese looking man that he might have been approached by ghosts because he had not seen someone, let alone shouting at him. It came to a fight where the student forced him on the ground where he held him. The student was trying his best not to hurt him. He had seen him singing in a passage near the city-center. The Chinese looking man wanted a compensation for his stuff that broke during his fight with the student. After some conversations with the student’s neighbors in the flat he was hiring, it turned out that the Chinese looking man had done the same things to several other residents of the apartment too. The Chinese looking man also wanted a compensation from them.

The students once again received a letter but this time from the court in The Hague. The subpoena was received in Rijswijk where therein was stated that the student is obligated to stand in court for the broken glass he broke with his heel. The verdict is forgotten and will not be mentioned in this book. The Palace of Justice is how the Dutch call the building. In the building there is to be found a jail complex. In one of those cells there was a drawing of Maria with her baby son. A beautiful drawing and worth mentioning.

It is not clear if the slander and defamation coming from his university had its effect on the students psyche. He developed some thoughts about what he saw on the news and on TV. In extremely recognizing ways the faces looked familiar. Was it coincidence or did it had something to do with the problems he had with the Town Hall of Rotterdam. Every city has its sphere of influences. Some cities have brotherly and sisterly relationships with other (mostly) European cities.

He made a dossier of his findings and supported his findings with evidence like e-mail correspondence between the student and the domain-manager and the director of the University. In that dossier he described a highly likely conclusion on how his university was trying to frame him as confused in a very dangerous time with war and attacks committed by confused muslims. The dossier is probably still in the office of the political movement DENK12. Previous the student had made a dossier of the fraud in south-side-Rotterdam and had send the dossier to the political party that had split themselves from the social-democrats. The Dutch members of Parliament were willing to have a conversation with the student. He was happy about that because his university and the municipality were not willing to cooperate with the student. The assumption came that maybe the police were in a position to calm the situation down but if the district manager and the executive of the area were not willing to cooperate then the police would certainly not. He delivered the dossier and left.

From the headquarters of the political party to the subway the student was followed by a long white male. The student played along and started to follow the white male all the way to his house. It was something innocent but a laugh out loud moment was appreciative13.

Later, in 2017, when he became homeless another man would follow him all the way from Spijkenisse, a town 7 kilometers away, all the way to his former neighborhood. The student was broke so he did not had the money for a bus  ticket. Walking had been a hobby but the last walks had been hard14.

A month earlier where the student broke the glass of the exit door he was being told that he would get suspended for three months. He would under no circumstances give the university more time, space and room to slander him as confused. This all happened one and a half months before he would hand his plan of approach for his thesis.

He was a typical student and his life had been organized around his studies. Socially accepted by his former fellow students and diligent in graduating. He had side jobs besides his study but was fired by the company he had worked for in January 2017 due to a dispute with a fellow colleague. Besides rent allowance and student grants he had no further incomes. On the moment he deregistered from his studies his student grants expired which resulted in him not being able to pay the rent. He refused to further contribute in a society which was hypocrite and oppressive. Instead of working on his thesis and graduating he started to smoke weed a month before the movers came to clean out his apartment. There was no money coming in anymore so he could not pay his monthly costs. His father and mother who came by once a week were not allowed to come in anymore. He took it out on his immediate environment because they did not believed him. The family of the student were thinking he was overacting.

In march 2017 the police raided into his apartment with a couple of officers and they took the student with them to a police station. A prosecutor had demanded the arrest of the  student. The police took him to jail but the student would not stay in prison but is handed over to a psychiatric clinic. Again there was a terror attack. This time in Tunisia. The headline of the newspaper was in regards to the attack: ‘I die for Allah’. He would stay a week in the clinic because the reproach of his university had evolved from confused to short-momentum-psychoses. At least, that is what the psychiatrist told the student after a couple of questions in two minutes time. Another employee of the clinic also shared the opinion of the Moroccan psychiatrist. He was convinced the student had a psychoses. Fortunately the judge made another decision and she let the student go back home. Arrived at home he saw that the door was demolished and was covered up with a wooden plate15.

The student who was almost graduated, who had made plans to open a small business while continue studying in law got homeless one month after he had deregistered himself from college. Early in the morning the movers came with the order to vacate the apartment16. Before the movers stepped inside the apartment the student got himself a suitcase to put some clothing in and he left to come back once more. He drank a cup of coffee with the caretaker of the residents and then walked towards a supermarket. He sold his watch for some energy drink and some cigarettes. After that he went on his way towards his parents to store some of the clothing he had with him. He told his parents that they ordered to evict him from his apartment and that he was going to Germany for a couple of days. He was tired from the past two years full of  slander and defamation but also due to hard work with no proper results. That hurt the student17.

Through Hengelo he travelled by train across the border To Germany. He would stay four days in Germany. Late in the evening he arrived at a town close to the border. He had no idea where he was. He would walk the entire night before he would arrive in the first big city after Hengelo in the Netherlands. De sky was clear and the moon was brightly visible with a big aurora in the form of a circle surrounding it. Early in the morning he arrived in Munster with his suitcase. He stole an energy drink and asked at a local bakery a piece of fresh bread. He came across a train station. He was in a state of two minds. Would he take the train to Dortmund or would he do something else? Staying in Munster was no option anymore. He had walked in a building and asked the peoples there in his best German if there was a place where travelers could sleep. She said something not understandable. She continued her phone-call because she had called someone to seek more information about a place where travelers could sleep. She came back after a minute and asked if the student was asking for money. He walked away.

Back at the train station he decided to travel on bike to the next big city Dortmund. At a local immigrant store the student asked for something to drink and the owner gave him a Fanta. He thought that he it would be possible for him to fold sheets in a hostel in exchange for a place to sleep. The owners refused unfortunately. He stalled his bike near the station and walked with his suitcase to a fast food restaurant where he got into a conversation with a man. He came out of  a casino and had a lot of coins. The man gave a 2 euro coin to the student as alms and shared his chicken nuggets with him. It was crowded near the stadium. Brossia Dortmunt had a game, but it was cancelled because ISIS had attacked the bus of the players of the team18. A ‘pipebomb’ hit the glass of the bus and damaged it. The next morning man could read in the newspaper that ISIS would try to kill all of humanity19. Later he would lie down on the grass to catch some sleep. He had not found a shelter to lie down under so he was laying down in a field. It started to rain so he decided to travel further with the train to a city called Essen.

When he arrived in Essen he got the idea to go to a family’s acquaintance. Unfortunately the student did not know where he could find his house so he stayed in the neighborhood of the train station. He asked at a shawarma restaurant a donner kebab and ate it. He was tired but could not fall asleep, so he took the night train to Koln. He arrived at the train station near the city center. He walked towards the east of the city. He tried to sleep in a hostel but the student again got declined for a bed. It was during elections, so there were a lot of signs of political parties hanging on streetlights. He went to a mosque in the eastern region of Koln and decided to ask for a shower and a cup of soup. The mosque was still under construction so the facilities had not been arranged. The psyche of the student found it a good idea to arrange a  shower and a cup of soup, if travelers may want to use those facilities20.

He travelled with the train from Koln to Dusseldorf and from Dusseldorf to Frankfurt. He arrived at the airport and walked into a supermarket. He stole a loaf of bread and something to drink and walked out. He was thinking about his journey to Afghanistan. It was at the same airport where he hopped on a plane and went for a holiday to his country for two weeks. In Frankfurt he stepped up on an escalator. In front of him there were standing five Central-Asian men. They had familiar faces.

In Frankfurt airport he took the train to Dresden and from Dresden to Leipzig. He was planning to visit his cousin and tell her what has happened to him the past two years. At first he wanted to go to his eldest cousin but the student could not remember if she lived in Giesen or in Siegen. He was too tired to search it out. It turned out that his cousin was moved to another neighborhood in Leipzig. He went to a hospital ran by Catholics but it turned out she was not there either. Thinking about it afterwards, the student did not know a hundred percent sure if he was at the right hospital. He spent the night at the main station and took the next morning the intercity back to the west of Germany. He fell asleep in the last compartment. In the train towards Maagdenburg a conductor woke him up and asked him for his train ticket. He did not have one so the student was asked to step out of the train. He then found out that he had lost his USB-stick with all the dossiers and files. Oh, what did he smell bad.

He arrived in Hannover and took the final train in Germany to Aachen. He arrived late at night in Aachen and travelled across the border to Limburg. In Heerlen in the Netherlands he took the train back to Rotterdam and went from there to the house of his parents21.

He went for a shower in the house of his little brother where he was asked to come downstairs. He saw that his family members were also there. Later on a group of doctors and their associates came walking inside. The student tried to tell the doctors that there is a difference between free scientific research and political economy22. The student said that phrase from the book Das Kapital following the case of fraud which still haunted him down. Those criminal activities of his university and the municipality was still following him, just like the slander and defamation. A month earlier he got sent home after a week in captivity in a psychiatric hospital. This time he was being told that a member of the municipality had signed a paper which order the government to seek for mental health issues by the student. He would be taken to a psychiatric hospital23.

His lips were dry and swollen after the four day visit to Germany and all he had with him was his suitcase with clothing.
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Koh-e-zoor and mount Thur.

The first when time the police came and locked him up in the psychiatric hospital they have been looking around in the students apartment for flags, sketches and signs which could  connect him with ISIS, so did the student read in the medical dossier.

The student suggested that Koh-e-zoor could be interpreted in two ways. Literally it means the mountain of envy or the mountain of strength. The word has been in this case literally translated from Dari. A lot of practices are easily recognizable but too often terms and words lack explanations which make us see the phenomenon but have difficulties to explain it.

What struck him upon entering the ward was that there were many man and woman who had the same looks or characteristics as the students family members. It was all staged up and it might be plausible that these man and woman had to convey messages in a subtle way to the student. A message from people on socially high positions. He had no clue why he got into a psychiatric clinic but the student had its suspicions that he will soon find out. Could it have to do something with the fraud, he asked himself. In total he stayed 46 days and nights in a psychiatric clinic and got to know a few patients in a superficial way. He started to have a conversation with an elderly man who looked like his eldest uncle and a severe ill woman who coughed like the students mother. As if she was nauseous and had to gag from the people surrounding her and the system she got caught in. What is obvious is that the woman was never supposed to be there. She was too ill to stay in a place with people who had mental issues. Besides, the help that the woman was seeking was not to be found in the place where she had been brought to. Later three other females arrived, they were nurses and were obligated to take care of the patients. They looked like  his cousins but were a bit more tanned24. A while later someone showed up on television with the same name as one of the nurses who was battling for a big prize on a television show.

It was April, a month before Ramadan. In May the Ramadan would start. It was around that time the student had intense dreams of how he was locked up in Saudi-Arabia, or another strict Islamic country in the Middle-East. A man fell unconscious in a loft where people could smoke their cigarettes. He walked in to a big hall with many peoples in it. He was terrified and was looking around him to write something on a piece of paper, but it was not clear what he was seeking to write. The students intense dream was finished and he walked into the dining area where the patients would have their meal and where the TV was hanging on the wall. He sat down on a chair and a man who was walking around all the time took two water jugs with syrup in them. He acted as if he wanted to throw the syrup over the students head. The student did not give a shit and sat while staring straight ahead thinking about the dream he had just had. It was the same white Dutch male who was threatening to commit a suicide attack which would be claimed by ISIS25. Later on, man could read in the newspaper that the prime-minister of the Netherlands was stating that there was this man who was punishable but would not be punished. Are they imitating psychiatric patients in a psychiatric clinic? Is this politics the student asked himself or is it about the fraud and the business plan which they wanted to take from him?

There was this Swedish guy who had the same characteristics as his elder German cousin. He was a bit chaotic in behavior. He was sleeping all the time. Before breakfast, lunch and dinner the patient were obligated to take a minute of silence to thank God for the daily meals. They were Roman-catholics so they ended their meal with ‘goede bekomst’ – a way to thank God after eaten well26. The Swedish man answered with: thanks, I appreciate it which made the student laugh out loud. Man could read in the papers of the next morning that there was a lot of video and audio tapes, so the student should watch out with what he thought was funny. Would it again be coincidence? He was the only Muslim and found their rituals before eating a meal strange. They were all very quiet and in full concentration. Some had their eyes closed while praying and a black man found it funny to blow at his food from 15 centimeters distance. He had a yoga mat and the clothing style was about the same as the students. They tried to humiliate the student by mirroring him. The black man gave the student a soft tap on his chin while the student reacted by slowly blowing smoke in his face. The tap is important because the devil also got delayed from his punishment from God until the trumpet was blown. The student is supposed to be the devil because he did not want to cooperate with fraud at the business counter. In a television show some actors assumed that the black man had troubles with his finances. That could have explained his behavior. Or would the information coming from the news reporter again be coincidence?

It was the umpteenth time that something happened by chance after which it was magnified and exaggerated on TV. Ever since he had his own apartment, with the attacks all over Europe and also his subject of his graduation. As if he was being followed by journalists. Perhaps that's why they tried to talk and convince the student of being confused and later suffering from psychosis, but the slander and reproaches got worse27.

In conversation with the doctor, he found out that they no longer accused him of confusion but of a short-term psychosis. When the student subsequently decided, in consultation with the doctor, to stay in hospital longer in order to cooperate with the investigation in order to make sure that nothing was wrong with him, he was told that it was not a short-term psychosis but a prolonged psychosis. A short-term psychosis does not last longer than a few days. He had been there for a few weeks now. In one of those conversations, he was asked if he would not answer to a group of psychiatrists. That doctor was completely lost and when he was addressed by the student he was told that he was suffering from delusions of grandeur. It was something incomprehensible. Wasn't he psychotic?

It was around that time that another judge came to determine if the student was sick enough to convert the IBS – the order for the government to look for mental issues – into a court order. The student had repeatedly urged the doctor not to do this because he was the victim and not the perpetrator. He did not want to cooperate with fraud and his business plan was taken from him by his former internship supervisor. He tried to back up his claims by stating that it had also appeared on the public broadcaster. The city council had released 3.8  million for the integration of asylum seekers. No one listened to the student, not even his assigned attorney. His IBS was converted to a court order. Later, there would be shown on television a lawyer who had exactly the same name as his lawyer. Could it be a coincidence?

He was told by one of the caretakers not to take his medicines. The student himself did not see the point of taking medicine because he was not ill. Nevertheless, he did not understand that medicines were administered to healthy people in the Netherlands. He asked the doctor why they did that. He got no answer back28. The caregivers subtly tried to convey a message to the student. They closed one eye while keeping the other eye open. This is koh-e-zoor; a negative koh-e-zoor.

There were also other sections in the psychiatric hospital. The student had been given the space to walk through the building and thus arrived at another department in the hospital. There were again patients who happened to resemble his relatives and former friends. He started a conversation with an Afghan girl about Aryans and their origin. She thought that Aryans only came from Europe, but the student pointed out to her that it was a misunderstanding and that Africans were also Aryans29. The student was reminded of a friend request he received on a social media channel a few years ago. The profile consisted of many photos with texts in Arabic and brunette colored women. He declined the friend request because the owner of the profile didn't look familiar to him. For a moment he wondered if the two cases were  related, but that would be too farfetched. It wouldn't have been invented years ago, would it? He picked himself up and continued the conversation. The student's fellow patient jumped to the subject of cocaine. For a moment it seemed that she had taken cocaine in exchange for a few weeks in the mental institution. There was also another man with a red beard. His relatives were crazy about cocaine, it seemed. The biggest cocaine dealer's name was stamped on his jacket and he seemed to think it was cool. There were two tables and the student put the tables together so that everyone would eat at one table, but the tables were arranged so that they formed a point shape. Later, man could read in the newspaper an article in which the Prime Minister of the Netherlands promised everyone a dot of cocaine through Dutch journalists.

There was also a younger woman of about 20. She seemed to enjoy berating the student for no reason. Later, the student would see her again in a different mental institution while working in delivery for a supermarket. That would be two years later30.

For a moment the word came that they were recording everything in the psychiatric facility to act out the student's situation. Koh-e-Zoor could be an eastern term for identity politics31. The aim of identity politics seems to be to hurt, humiliate and intimidate the person in question as much as possible. Politicians and private individuals who engage in identity politics seem to experience a void in their lives. Many of them want to imitate everything. They want to experience  what the person in question is experiencing. They want to experience his status, knowledge and even feelings and then use this against him. Together with fellow comrades, they imitate his surroundings. This can go so far that their hatred and dislike for a person leads them to hurt others who have nothing to do with the situation. Identity politics could have its origins in psychiatry. Characteristic of identity politics is that at some point it takes on a life of its own. Defamation and slander are negative additional symptoms of identity politics. Identity politics is something for narrow-minded people who don't give anyone anything. Koh-e-zoor has the same effect on people as those who engage in identity politics.

Persons who associate themselves with koh-e-zoor can be recognized by symbols that they carry out with their hands. Usually they imitate a triangle with their hands. You see this a lot with journalists and the Chancellor of Germany, for example. None of them ever explained what it means. So this is just a theory.

After 46 days he was transferred again to The Hague because his first treatment had started there32. Back in The Hague, he stayed in the department where he also stayed during the first recording. The student was in a precarious situation. He had to get the psychiatrists to understand that he didn't have psychosis, didn't have megalomania, and wasn't confused. However, they didn't seem to understand and they kept repeating that the student was a danger to his environment. The doctors didn't take each other seriously either. One psychiatrist thought he should take medication because of his psychosis. The independent psychiatrist found that there was  no psychosis and had therefore advised against compulsory medication. Forced medication had no legal effectiveness whatsoever33. In Poortugaal he had refused his release under certain conditions. In The Hague, however, he came back to this decision because he saw no other way out of the clinic. The student's brother also visited the clinic once. Before that, they had often argued over the phone. The student's relatives believed that he was suffering from psychosis from his cannabis use, but that was not true. After all, he only had two hash-joints in almost 6 months and he didn't feel any different than normal. During his visit, a conversation also took place between the student, his brother and the attending physician. An employee of the clinic was also present. The attending physician held a red pen in her hand and looked at the student's brother. After all, they were talking and the student's brother could finally have his say. Instead, his little brother burst into tears and declared to the doctor that he had done everything. It was not clear exactly what he had done. The student sat next to him and looked at him in astonishment at the intense emotional state that came out of nowhere. In the courtyard during the conversation with his brother he asked the student to stop and that he can ruin everything. The student did not understand what to stop and what he could screw up. Later he would leave on his scooter back to his hometown. The student sarcastically thanked him for his concern, but he bowed down and left.

He also tried to escape from the clinic during his first admission. The first time he went to his aunt from the clinic, but she was not at home. Then he went to another aunt, but she was not at home either. He then went to a former friend  of his, where he rang the doorbell and the friend's mother opened the door. The student just came to say hello. As he walked away he said an anecdote aloud, but he said this in a sarcastic way. The anecdote went like this: Once upon a time there were some people and they asked Muhammad the Prophet what comes first. Mohamed replied: God. They asked him: what comes next? He told them: your mother. And after that? He replied: again your mother. And after that? He replied: again your mother. And after that? He replied: your father. The real version he had made a note of and has no sarcastic undertone and is more detailed.

He then started walking all the way to Leiden, after which he ended up at Leiden Central. There he took the train to Amsterdam. He put his backpack with all his notes in his bag, but he didn't have a suitcase of clothes with him. He walked around all evening and during his walk through Amsterdam he came across a pre-rolled joint on the floor. He picked it up and smoked it. When he got stoned, he sobbed with grief.

Marijuana had a healing effect on him at that time because he let go of his feelings. Early in the morning he left for his parental home, but when he arrived only a good friend of his mother was home. He said hello and took a shower to fall asleep in the attic. He was woken up by two police officers but instead of walking downstairs he went to his brother's room where he half asleep asked the policemen where he should sleep. He didn't know where to lie down because he had no home and nowhere to go. He was loaded into the police van and taken to the clinic. Police officers dropped a bag of weed in the backyard. This he would later hear from his father. However, he had no income and therefore no money. So he could never have bought that bag of weed. The Bible records that Eve became pregnant and Cain was born. After that, Abel was born, with no mention of pregnancy. Cain, the older of the two, was a farmer; Abel was a shepherd. Cain killed his brother because God accepted Abel's animal offering, but not Cain's offering, a portion of the crop of the land. Pictures often show that the smoke of Abel's offering rises and the smoke of Cain does not. While jealousy is obvious, the story does not state a reason for the fratricide, nor for God's preference.

God asks Cain where his brother is, to which he replies, "Am I my brother's keeper?" For his deed Cain is cursed by God and condemned to wander34. Nevertheless, God puts a "mark" on Cain so that no one will harm him. His eventual murder will be avenged sevenfold, God promises. Cain goes to the land of Nod ("the Land of Wandering"), east of Eden"35. Nod is the root of the Hebrew verb for "wandering", so not a land but the aimlessness with which Cain initially entered the world is indicated. According to the Book of Jubilees, Cain died in the year 931, a year after his father Adam, because his stone house collapsed above him, so Cain died in the same way as Abel, for he had killed Abel with a stone.

Could the fact that Cain was a farmer and the wandering of the student and the bag of weed be related36?

The second time he escaped again and went to his parental home. He ran away during a walk with one of the escorts. When he arrived home, he already expected to be taken away by the police. A little later they arrived on the sidewalk, but the  student saw that and left through the back door. He ran around and hid in the bushes. He had brought 40 euros with him because in the clinic they tried to make him dependent by denying him the basic necessities. He had no shampoo and no toothbrush. He looked unkempt and you could say he was neglected during his time in the clinic as a prisoner. He was placed outside the bushes among onlookers in the police van and taken back to the clinic. One of the police officers thought he was a hottie. But they were so friendly. You should have experienced it.

A while later he would resign under certain conditions. In all that time he has never taken any medication and his conditions stated that he had to report to an office of the same psychiatric clinic. This is where the outpatient department of the clinic was located. His attendant looked remarkably like a man plating in a commercial for a smaller bank. It must be a coincidence again, he thought at that moment. As stated in his terms and conditions, he visited the ambulatory care providers and met another doctor. He started talking about the student arguing with his brother. A bit of a strange statement because which brothers don't argue, the student reasoned. It was uncomfortable for a doctor unfamiliar with the situation to make such statements about personal interactions in the relational sphere between two brothers.

He was allowed to leave the clinic in August. He had no studies, no job, no home and was completely isolated from the rest of his acquaintances, relatives and former friends. There was nothing for it but to go to his parental home. He would stay there for three months and would come into contact with the authorities that deal with the homeless in The Hague. He received a postal address through his contact  person and that was it. He was offered to take homeless benefits, but he declined. Something about his dignity. The young man who was about to graduate six months ago and wanted to start a business now had to live on a homeless benefit. He thanked them for that. He stayed at his parents' house for three months while he was given two weeks to arrange everything. Unfortunately, a postal address was also the only thing that could be arranged. He was helped with nothing and received no guidance in the further course of his journey.

In November of that year, the student got into an argument with his father, after which his father called the police. The police came in, but instead of calming down the argument, the student was informed that he still had an outstanding prison sentence and that he had to come along. It was not clear for which offense the student still had an outstanding prison sentence. He had to get himself a lawyer to prove his innocence, but he had nothing. Like the other inmates, he was caged and humiliated by stripping of his clothing. He was put in a double cell with a jailer. That young man had been in contact with the police before and had been detained in Alphen aan de Rijn before. He was supposed to represent a deceased friend from the time of the student's youth. However, he was a drug addict and had prescribed methadone for his heroin addiction. In total, he would be captive for two weeks after which he was released.

After his release, he went back to his parents who worked in the market. They no longer wanted him in the house and for that reason had taken his clothing with a pillow and a body warmer and gave that to him. It was already winter and the temperature was dropping. He went back to his former  apartment. However, he would not open the door and sleep on a bed but at the bottom of the stairs on the ground floor. He walked through town with a former neighbor and when they returned they had found a mattress. The student took the mattress with him. The black neighbor had opened all the doors of the flat so that the student did not have to ring the bell everywhere. He brought two energy drinks and a little bit of marijuana which the two of them smoked in the engine room of the flat. For the next two weeks, he would sleep on the street and eat candy and sandwiches in casinos.

After those two weeks he went back to the market to visit his parents. He tried not to be isolated, so no matter how much quarrels he had with his immediate family, he continued to contact his parents. Also because he missed them. He asked if he could come home again. This was allowed, but on the condition that he would take his medication. He agreed. However, after a month he got into an argument with them again because he did not understand why he had to take medication. There was nothing wrong with him. Compulsive medication also had no legal effectiveness, the psychiatrist argued. He was evicted again. He took his belongings and his sister's public transport chip card with him and took it with him to Spijkenisse to go back to The Hague from there. This time, his stay on the street would last longer than two weeks. He came in touch with a foundation that offers homeless people a cup of soup and a hot shower. Just as he had asked for it at that mosque in Koln a few months earlier. In that place he could shower and possibly make use of the facilities such as a hot meal around noon. It was exactly the same  place where he had a post address. However, he did not use it and did not eat with them. He didn't want to37.

Before his time in the prison of Vught, he had borrowed the Koran from a library and had it with him when he was arrested. It was then high season for making hand gestures on television and he remembered a verse in the Qur'an that commands people to believe as the people believe38. This means that one must observe the customs of the region or country in which they live and work. For example, in the jungle one has to master the habits of a forest dweller because otherwise it becomes difficult to survive, but also speak the language of the people when one praises God, for example. In countries with a large Christian and Jewish population, such as the Netherlands and Morocco, it is advisable not to call God Allah and not to say Allahamdullilah, but 'all praise is due to God'.

He wondered if the triangle is their belief. In his third year of college, the student had seen an article on his Facebook bulletin board. He responded and decided to make an appointment to talk to those people, these Freemasons. Back in the day, when everything was still good and when he often hung out on the street, he sometimes heard stories and theories about how that organization controlled the world and how that organization had spread its tentacles over the banking, music and film industries. He didn't know what was true at the time, so this was a great opportunity to hear more information from the people themselves. He was invited to an open day at the Loge in The Hague and spoke with an  Indonesian man. That man stated that it is a neat gentlemen's club and that they do not want bad guys or people from the CIA. The student reassured about his innocence and told him about the article from the open day that he had seen on Facebook.

The student introduced him to the conversation and told him that it took him several years to make his decision to join the organization. The student asked him why it took so long, but he didn't get a clear answer. The conversation lasted more than an hour before the man substantively guided the student around the Lodge. He arrived in a blue room where he was explained the rituals and the meaning of the colours. He arrived in another room, a red room, and noticed that the energy was more intense than that of the blue room. As if things happened there that should be hidden for the outside world. He ended the conversation and was given two cards. He had to choose between two parties. We no longer know what the choice consisted of. Another appointment was made for a next meeting. He thought of the people gathered there. They were white old men in their 50s/60s. They looked like they were higher on the social ladder than the average Dutchman.

The next appointment was at a member of the organization at home. There were two more man, bringing them to a total of three people. The student was served freshly made bread during lunch and they talked about each other and the organization. The student told the man that he was studying law and was working on his majors and minors and that they had an international, sociological and political character. The man was listening to the story and told something about the organization. It's hard to bring it all up again because a lot  was said during that conversation. The man told about the triangle shape and what it exactly entailed. In fact, it's a way of making money for the people at the top. The members in the lower ranks invest a lot in the members in the higher ranks. The student remembered his first thought when he applied to the organization. He thought it would be a great opportunity to network and then set up that company. The student had been thinking about starting this venture for several years.

Suddenly the memory of a childhood friend came up to him. He got caught up in such an organization and lost all his money and car and things like that. That was also an organized triangle business structure, just like the company ASN or something like that. However, the student's childhood friend was a coffee trader and had a superior above him and a fellow acquaintance at his side. Just like in a triangle. In hindsight it was a scam because to make money you had to find people who want to do the same thing in the same business model with the same product. In addition, you were tied to a type of subscription and you had to transfer a certain amount of money to your superior to have your account, because you also received that in the business model, continued to be activated. If you did not pay that amount of money, your account will be deactivated and you will lose your entire investment. This resulted in near bankruptcy for that childhood friend of the student.

The explanation of the member of the Lodge astonished the student. After a while they stopped talking and the student shook hands with the men and thanked them for their hospitality. He was still thinking about the man's story in the tram.

Later he would have an appointment with a whole group of people present. That was the last meeting before a file was sent with all the questions that one had to fill in to actually become a member. Women were also present at that last meeting in the blue Lodge. They were of the female branch called the weavers. The man clearly had a higher rank within that organization. He was reminded of a video he had seen on the internet. In that video, which was shot in a Lodge in Turkey, you saw a group of men with drawn swords pointing at an aspiring member while the man was blindfolded. When he took off his blindfold, he saw that he was surrounded and that he had no other option but to join himself with the Freemasons39. Could that be their way of working, the student thought. Making people dependent on them and then using them for the interests of an organization? In another video you saw how three apparently neat gentlemen were in a Lodge watching a woman who had her legs open and performed a kind of striptease, but she kept her clothes on40. The student couldn't imagine exposing himself to strangers and then being blackmailed and used for the interests of the organization and even becoming a pimp of his own wife. Although he was single and had no girlfriend, he never thought of offering his wife in exchange for services and goods.

They had come in with a group in the blue lodge and in the end it was decided on the basis of a short conversation who could stay and who could go. There were also two other  people with them and they were from Afghanistan. The father and son had come to the appointment together and the boy had clearly not informed himself properly, the student noticed. His father also spoke poorly the Dutch language. This clearly did not go down well with the man leading the conversation as they were told they were not allowed to join. The father and son left and the student was told that the members would drink a beer or a glass of wine together. The student noticed that there was a man who had distinctly Jewish features and clothing. Perhaps the organization had its foundations from Judaism, the student thought. It was an informal atmosphere where it was told that the organization does not bother which religion a member adheres to. The aim of the organization is to work on yourself through conversations with each other.

That was the last time the student left the Lodge. On the way back he thought about everything that had been discussed and how that father and son had been rejected. He thought about those videos and decided to think again about whether he would become a member or not. In the end, during his internship at the entrepreneurs' counter, he sent an e-mail in which he subtly tried to make it clear that he would not become a member. The student had come to the conclusion that the members within that organization had sold their souls to the devil in exchange for a network, a job and a following. The student meant by selling their souls that they had to put everything on the table, with the fallacies that they were working on themselves, and then being blackmailed with it41. History will tell if this is the truth or if the student was wrong about them.

Could the triangle be their belief, the student in the prison of Vught thought. If the Koh-e-Zoor, the mountain of envy or the mountain of strength, is their belief and the triangle is the symbol they stand for, then there must be a flip side to it too. That flip side is important because it can confirm their movement or belief. He went to investigate and arrived at the Afghan embassy in The Hague on the Laan van Meerdervoort. He stepped inside and thought of an argument he had with a homeless person in the same street. The homeless man shouted at him that he was Dutch with the aim of projecting this onto the student. However, the student realized it and replied that he was not a Dutchman but comes from Afghanistan. The student had darts in his hand and wanted to hit the mans neck with the points of the darts.

He wanted to use the Koh-e-zoor, the mountain of strength, to place himself next to a journalist and thus exonerate him from crimes of which he was suspected. It would later turn out that he was not strong enough for that at that time. He thought about how he was followed by journalists who use the same triangle as a symbol to justify their news postings and topics. Believe as the people believe, the student thought. He sat down on a chair and addressed the embassy employee and told him in a superficial way what had happened to him. The student spoke with a double tongue to convey certain messages to the people who followed him. He later stepped out of the embassy talking to himself that he is  a child of Afghanistan. The man in question was not released but was arrested while he was in the embassy42.

The student took more time to read. In addition, he made notes of theories and questions that were occupying his mind at the time. What stayed with him during his first or second period of his recording was that it was always about sex and women. They spoke mainly with a double tongue. So when they talked about selling guns, for a moment it seemed like they were talking about selling women. The thought occurred to the student that they were pimps. It is no longer clear exactly how his reasoning and thoughts worked out, but he came up with the sum of the triangle as a symbol and the relationship between journalists and politicians. They use the mountain of power to make ordinary lay people believe that they are rulers of the country and that their choices influence big decisions. But that's politics and the student was concerned with religion rather than administrative tasks and what they entailed. Besides the mountain of strength and the mountain of envy you also have the mountain of the mordagau, or the mountain of the pimp.
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